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City Council Agenda | 2
September 10, 2018 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Karen Scott, Finance Director, City of North Little Rock, Electric Department

Financial statements and independent Auditor’s report, December 31, 2017 and
2016.

PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

CONSENT AGENDA
None.
NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS
R-18-179 Mayor Smith
Appointing Jay Carman to the Wastewater Treatment Commission

R-18-180 Mayor Smith
Establishing the Thomas Cemetery Advisory Committee; appointing members of
the Committee

R-18-181  Council Members Robinson and Taylor
Accepting the low bid of and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a
contract with Smithworth, Inc. d/b/a On-Line Construction for the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) project, Poe Street Improvements Phase 1T —
Street and Drainage Improvements Project, in the amount of $156,790.00

R-18-182 Mayor Smith
Certifying local government endorsement of First Orion Corp. to participate in
the tax back program as authorized by Section 15-4-2706(d) of the Consolidated
Incentive Act of 2003

R-18-183  Mayor Smith
Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County
Tax Collector against certain real properties as a result of grass cutting expenses

and abatement of other nuisances
Convene a public hearing
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ORDINANCES

0-18-73 Council Member Taylor
Approving a request for waiver of screening and landscaping buffer requirements
for certain real property located at 760 Michaela Drive (applicant: Premier Care

Pharmacy)

O-18-74  Council Members Robinson and Taylor
Reclassifying certain property located at 2018 Crutcher from R-3 to R-4 by
amending Ordinance No. 7697 (applicant: Fennell Purifoy Architects)

PPUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it
to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened; speakers have 3 minutes to address

their topic

Respectfully submitted,

By,

Diane Whitbey, CAMC / MMC
City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to Live by:
“You are never too old to set another goal, or to dream another dream.” Aristotle

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go to the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

PM.
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CRAFT, VEACH & COMPANY, P1LC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department
(the “Department”), a component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, which comprise the
statements of net position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
financial statements.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonahbleness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Department as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in financial position and
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

P.O. Box 13986 e Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massic Road ¢ North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 | Fax (501) 753-6706





Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the Department
and do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the City as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, the changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis (pages 3-5), budgetary comparison information (page 20), and historical pension
information (pages 21-22) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 24, 2018, on
our consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

i ok i

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
July 24, 2018
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

This section presents management’s analysis of the City of North Little Rock Electric Department’s (NLRED)
financial condition and activities for the year. This information should be read in conjunction with the

financial statements.

Overview

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in
conjunction with, the basic financial statements and supplementary information. The MD&A represents
management’s examination and analysis of the utility’s financial condition and performance.

The financia! statements report information about the NERED using full accrual accounting methods as
utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. The financial statements include a statement of
net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, statement of cash flows, notes to
the financial statements and other supporting schedules.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the NLRED on a full accrual historical cost
basis. This statement presents information on all of the assets and liabilities with the difference reported as
net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets are an indicator of whether the financial
position of the NLRED is improving or deteriorating.

While the statement of net position provides information about the nature and amount of resources and
obligations at year-end, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the
results of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position
changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows.

The statement of cash flows present’s changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational,
financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and disbursement information only.

The notes to the financial statements and supplementary information are provided to disclose information
that is essential to a full understanding of the material data provided in the statements.

The financial statements were prepared by NLRED staff from its detailed transactions for the years ending
December 31, 2017 and 2016. The financial statements were audited and adjusted, if material, during the
independent external audit process.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements on pages 6 through 8 provide information about the financial activities of NLRED.
The following information is an analysis of the year presented.

Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2017, total assets were $193,276,040 and exceeded total liabilities of 563,741,765 by
$129,534,275. Of the total net position, $113,600,604 was invested in capital assets, $3,137,377 was
restricted for debt service, $7,387,784 was restricted for working capital, and $5,456,350 was unrestricted.






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016

Current Assets S 50,890,436 S 42,280,274
Non-current Assets 975,000 -
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 141,410,604 137,874,951
Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,408,643 2,493,469
Current Liabilities 16,662,220 11,426,860
Non-current Liabilities 47,079,545 48,028,532
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,360,803 1,753,307
Net position

Net investment in capital assets 113,600,604 106,064,951

Restricted for debt service 3,137,377 2,680,415

Restricted for working capital 7,387,784 2,307,080

Unrestricted net position 5,456,350 10,387,549

The current ratio is an indication of short-term liquidity and is calculated by dividing current assets by
current liabilities. A resulting number greater than one indicates current assets in excess of current needs
that can be applied in future periods. The current ratio for NLRED was 3.05 for 2017, compared 3.70 for
2016. Another ratio that is computed from this statement is the debt utilization ratio, which indicates what
percentage the total debt is to total assets. This ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total assets. The
debt utilization ratios for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 21% and 33% respectively.

The following were net capital improvements, additions or replacements for 2017 (the figures are
approximate):

Murray Hydro Electric Generation Plant S 115,000
Ben E. Keith Distributed Generation 3,924,000
Distribution System 2,695,000
ANl (Advanced Meter Infrastructure - Smart Meters) 287,000
Office Furniture & Fixtures, Computers, Communication and Misc. Equipment 1,771,000
Transportation, Tools, and Power Equipment 1,488,000
CWIP - Net of Transfers to Property, Plant & Equipment 2,556,000
Total Capital Improvements $ 12,836,000

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the year-ending December 31, 2017, operating revenues were 589,964,914 and operating expenses
were $69,858,975. Non-operating revenues and {expenses) totaled $(372,867) which consisted of non-
operating revenues of $1,818,975, and non-operating expenses of $2,191,842. Transfers to the City were
$12,000,000. The result was an increase in net position in the amount of 57,733,072,






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK MANAGEMENT’S BISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
2017 2016
Operating Revenues S 89,964,914 $ 82,798,486
Operating Expenses 69,858,975 68,003,396
Non-operating Revenues 1,818,975 1,305,259
Non-operating Expenses 2,191,842 2,451,595
Transfers to the City 12,000,000 12,000,000
Increase {Decrease) in Net Position S 7,733,072 S 1,648,754

The NLRED operating revenues for 2017 increased $7,166,428 from 2016. The main reason for the increase
was the result of a cumulative positive Energy Cost Recovery adjustment factor {ECR) in 2017 as compared
to a cumulative negative ECR in 2016. The majority of NLRED operating revenue is derived from residential
and commercial customers. In 2017, the NLRED had an average of 33,452 residential customers, 4,938
commercial customers, and 134 large users.

Operating expenses, not including depreciation expense, increased 2% in 2017. Depreciation expense
increased 6% in 2017,

Non-operating revenues increased 39% in 2017 while Non-operating expenses decreased 11% in 2017.

Pension Plan Disclosure

As per the Government Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 67 and No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, revises existing guidance for the financial reports of most pension plans for
state and local governments that provide their employees with pension henefits. Please see Note 6 in the
accompanying audit notes to the financial statements.

Budget-to-Actual Comparison

The budget is prepared internally by NLRED based on the prior year's activity. The previous year amounts
are adjusted to reflect anticipated activity for the current year. As with any budget, there are differences
between anticipated and actual results.

Actual operating revenues were more than budgeted by approximately $965,000. Operating expenses, not
including depreciation, were approximately $1,259,252 more than the amount budgeted. The change in Net

Position was approximately $479,000 more than the amount budgeted.

See “Budgetary Comparison Schedule” on page 20 of the Audit.






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Hydro maintenance fund
Restricted cash
Accounts receivabie, net of allowance of 5465,004

and $474,245, for 2017 and 2016, respectively

Other receivables
Note receivable - current portion
Unbilled revenue
Materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets:
Note receivable, net of current portion
Total Non-Current Assets:

Property, Plant, and Equipment:
Property, plant, and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Property, Plant, and Equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount from refunding of bonds
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and cther liabilities
Bonds payable - current portion
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of customer deposits

Total Current Lizbilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Interest earned on restricted investments
Customer deposits payable
Accrued pension Hability
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES RELATED TO PENSIONS
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for debt service

Restricted for working capital

Unrestricted net position

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2017 2016
$ 13,897,790  $ 20,936,778
4,478,800 4,000,000
15,613,626 4,987,495
7,485,710 3,328,933
163,339 162,064
65,000 .
3,761,000 4,079,000
3,109,187 2,805,404
2,315,984 1,980,600
50,890,436 47,280,274
975,000 -
575,000 -
294,789,083 281,952,602
{153,378,479) (144,077,651)
141,410,604 137,874,951
193,276,040 180,155,225
177,166 708,663
2,231,477 1,784,806
3,408,643 2,493,360
195,684,683 182,648,694
7,754,345 4,293,034
2,319,131 2,263,010
4,910,000 4,295,000
530,099 575,816
1,148,645 -
16,662,220 11,426,860
10,369 .
3,836,228 -
6,782,948 6,668,532
36,450,000 41,360,000
47,070,545 78,028,532
63,741,765 59,455,392
2,360,803 1,753,307
113,600,604 106,064,951
3,137,377 2,680,415
7,387,784 2,307,080
5,456,350 10,387,549

129,582,115

121,439,995

$ 195,684,683

S 182,648,694






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Operating revenues:
Sale of electricity, net of uncollectible accounts

Operating expenses:
Purchased electricity
Depreciation
Distribution system maintenance
Other distribution expenses
Customer records and collection expense
General and administrative
Franchise tax
Operating expenses
Generation plant maintenance
General plant maintenance
Other generation plant expenses
Conservation
Property and liability insurance
Regulatory fees

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest and investment income
Interest expense
Pension expense
Trustee fees
Penalty income
Miscellaneous income
Grant income
Loss on disposal of equipment

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses}

Income before transfers out
Transfers out

increase {decrease) in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Transfer of Net Assets from North Little Rock
Utilities Accounting Department

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2017

2016

S 89,964,914

S 82,798,486

45,190,964 44,277,167
9,088,223 8,548,592
3,151,952 3,165,791
3,152,319 3,050,781
3,107,790 2,435,287
1,252,271 1,238,391
1,052,063 1,026,244
1,187,133 1,065,823

650,884 1,139,414
706,583 549,838
439,739 580,700
363,416 340,930
308,347 322,477
207,291 261,961
69,858,975 68,003,396
20,105,939 14,795,000
196,283 90,429
(1,906,113) {1,962,159)
(275,241) (306,714)
{10,488) (10,481)
946,912 790,455
531,280 424,375
144,500 -
- (172,241)
(372,867) {1,146,336)

19,733,072 13,648,754

12,000,000 12,000,000
7,733,072 1,648,754

121,439,995 119,791,241
409,048 -

$ 129,582,115

$121,439,995






CITY OF NORTH LITFLE ROCK STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

ELECTRIC DEPARTIVIENT YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers S 86,135,378 S 82,901,507
Payments to vendors (4,245,996) {9,128,752)
Payments for purchase of electricity {45,190,964) {44,277,167)
Payments for taxes (1,036,837} (947,602)
Payments to employees (6,882,290} (5,875,921}
Net cash flows provided (used) by operating activities 28,779,291 22,672,065

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfers to other departments {12,000,000) (12,000,000}
Loans to other departments {975,000} -
Penalty income 946,912 790,455
Net cash effect of transfers from NLR UAD 5,372,677 -

Net cash flows provided {used} by noncapital financing activities (6,655,411} {(11,209,545)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Repayment of long-term debt and bonds payable {4,295,000) (14,460,000)
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment (13,214,548} {9,985,369)
Interest paid {1,951,830) {2,931,987)
Trustee payments {10,488)
Grant receipts 144,560 -
Other receipts 531,280 424,375
Deferred outflows from refunding of bonds 531,497 -
Net cash flows provided {used) by capital and related financing activities (18,264,589) (26,952,981}

Cash flows fror investing activities:

Interest on investments 206,652 90,429
Net cash flows provided {used) by investing activities 206,652 90,429
Net increase {decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents 4,065,943 (15,400,032}
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 29,924,273 45,324,305
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year S 33,990,216 & 29,924,273

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income S 20,105,939 & 14,795,090

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 9,700,139 $,127,032

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (4,156,777} 56,178
Other receivables (66,275) 1,850
Unbilled revenues 318,000 46,000
Prepaid expenses {335,384) (653,008}
Inventory {303,783) (610,293}
increase {decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,461,311 (346,527}
Accrued expenses 56,121 255,743
Net cash provided by operating activities S 28,779,291 S 22,672,065

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions investing
and financing activities:

Amortization deferred on bond refunding, included in interest expense 5 531,497 S 88,583

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 8






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Operations and Reporting Entity

The City of North Little Rock Electric Department {the “Department”) generates and provides electrical
power to residents and businesses of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas {the “City”), and other
communities in Pulaski County, Arkansas. The Department extends credit to customers on an unsecured
basis. The financial statements present only the Department, an enterprise fund, and are not intended to
present the financial position of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.

The Department has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board {“GASB”) Statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1589 FASB and
AICPA  Pronouncements, which incorporates Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

Buasis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Department have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. As a component unit
of the City of North Little Rock, the Department has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. GASB
Statement No. 34 established standards for external financial reporting for all state and local governmental
entities, which includes a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position, and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net position into three components
— restricted; net investment in capital assets; and unrestricted.

Restricted - consists of constraints placed on net position imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes,
or other borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

Unrestricted — consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net
investment in capital assets”,

The Department’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense or outlay is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

The Department recognizes revenue and expenses using the accrual method of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. The Department distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with the principal ongoing operations of the Department. Operating expense for the proprietary funds
include the cost of personnel, supplies, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and labilities, and the reported
revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were assumed in preparing the
financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Department considers certificates of deposits and all highly
fiquid cash investments with original maturities of less than three months to be cash equivalents.

Hydro Maintenance Fund

On November 23, 2015, the City Council approved Resolution No. 8886, which establishes a fund dedicated
to manage expenses associated with maintenance of the Murray Hydroelectric Plant without incurring debt
and anticipates that the overhaul of Unit 1 will occur within the next two fiscal cycles.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to customers. The Department utilizes the allowance
method of accounting for uncollectible accounts receivable. The Department reviews their customer
accounts on a monthly basis and records a reserve for specific amounts that management determines may
not be collected, which generally will include accounts that are more than 90 days past due. In addition, the
Department has established a general reserve for potential uncollectible accounts based on historical bad
debts. Amounts are written off at the point when collection attempts have been exhausted, which is usually
nine months after the account is past due. Management uvses significant judgment in estimating
uncollectible amounts.  In estimating uncollectible amounts, management believes the Department’s
processes effectively address its exposure to doubtful accounts, changes in economic, industry, or specific
customer conditions may require adjustment to the allowance recorded by the Department. Accounts
receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $465,004 and $474,245 at both December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

Debt Issuance Expenses
Debt issuance expenses are recorded as expenses in the year that they are incurred.

Inventory
Inventory consists of materials and supplies valued at the lower of cost or market, using the average cost

method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost unless otherwise noted. Depreciation is provided by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from five to fifty years.
The cost of additions to property, plant and equipment include contractual work, direct labor, materials and
allocable overhead. Costs of repairs and maintenance that do not improve or extend the assets lives are
charged to expense as incurred.

Restricted Assets
The Department’s bond agreements restrict certain assets for the payment of debt service, capital
improvements, and repairs and maintenance,

Compensated Absences
The Department policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be
realized as paid time off, or in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. The Department has accrued a

liability for vacation and sick leave pay, which has been earned but not taken by employees.
10






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Transfers to General Fund

The Department transfers funds to the General Fund of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas based on
amounts directed and authorized by the City Council in the annual budget. These transfers are accounted
for as operating transfers. The amounts of these transfers is $12,000,000 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Date of Management’s Review
Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 24, 2018, that date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2: DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS

The Department complies with all state and local laws and regulations as well as the provisions of certain
contracts requiring the use of separate funds. The required funds used by the Department include the
following:

Operation and Maintenance Fund

The Operating and Maintenance Fund is used to pay the reasonable and necessary monthly expenses of
operation, and repair and maintenance of the electric system. The fund is maintained by required monthly
transfers from the Revenue Fund.

Revenue Bond Fund

On the next to last business day of each month, there shall be paid to this fund a sum egual to one-sixth of
the next installment of interest, one-twelfth of the next installment of principal, and the estimated fees for
the trustee for the current month until such time as there is accumulated in the fund an amount equal to
the maximum annual debt service on all bonds outstanding.

Surplus Fund

Any surplus in the Revenue Fund after making all disbursements and making all required deposits described
above, including the correction of any deficiencies, may be used for any lawful municipal purpose including
early redemption of outstanding bonds or for the construction of extensions, betterments, and

improvements to the electric system.
NOTE 3: DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS, AND INVESTMENT INCOME

investment return includes dividend, interest, and other investment income, realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments carried at fair value, and realized gains and losses on other investments.
Investment return is included in unrestricted net position.

Interest rate risk — The Department has no formal policy to limit its exposure to fair value losses due to rising
interest rates. ’

Credit risk — Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fuifill its
obligations. Provisions of debt agreements require the investments by the Department be rated no less
than Aa by Moody's Investors Service and AA by Standard and Poor’s Investor Service. There were no such
investments at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

11






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS, INVESTIMENTS, AND INVESTMENT INCOME (Continued)

Custodial credit risk — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the
counterparty, the Department will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. There were no such investments at December 31, 2017 and
2016.

Concentration of credit risk — The Department places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any
one issuer. The Department had amounts deposited in common trust and money market funds totaling
$10,525,161 and $4,987,495 which are included in cash, hydro maintenance fund and restricted cash at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively.

Total investment return for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is comprised of the following:
2017 2016
Interest and investment income $ 196,283 S 90,429

NOTE 4: PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively:

2015 Additions Transfers Disposals 2017
Land § 2032960 § - $ - S - S 2,032,960
Plant and Equipment 276,268,502 1,620,383 9,349,512 (1,288,700} 286,548,697
Construction in Process 3,651,140 11,594,165 {9,037,879) - 6,207,426
281,952,602 13,214,548 911,633 (1,289,700 294,789,083
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation (144,077,651) {9,700,139) (890,384) 1,283,700 {153,378,479)
§ 137,874,951 S 3514409 5 21,244 % - $ 141,410,604
2015 Additions Transfers Disposals 2016
Land $ 2,082,960 § . S - S - § 2,032,960
Plant and Equipment 258,365,256 1,251,176 17,867,890 (1,215,820) 276,268,502
Construction in Process 12,784,837 8,734,193 {17,867,890) - 3,651,140
273,183,053 9,985,369 - (1,215,820} 281,852,602
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation {135,994,198) {9,127,032) - 1,043,579 (144,077,651}
$ 137,188,855 S 858,337 § - S (172,241} S 137,874,951

The Department allocates a portion of total depreciation expense across to various operating expense
accounts. The amount of depreciation expense that was allocated as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was
$632,894 and $578,440, respectively.

12






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT

On May 1, 2011, the Department issued $16,000,000 revenue bonds. The interest rate on the Series 2001
Revenue bonds is 5.1%. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient to redeem principal plus interest at rates
ranging from 2.3% to 5.1% are required; redeemable at the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas’ option, as a
whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest at any date on 45 days’ notice. On
November 1, 2016 the Department place the remaining bond proceeds from the Series 2011 bonds into an
escrow account. This move allows for the Department to save money by choosing advance refunding of the
bonds. An advance refunding takes advantage of current market conditions by issuing bonds now, The bond
proceeds will remain in the escrow account until they can be optionally redeemed on May 1, 2018,

On June 1, 2012, the Department issued bonds totaling $55,780,000. The interest rates on the Series 2012A,
2012B, and 2012C Revenue honds range between 3.0% and 5.0%. Annual sinking fund payments sufficient
to redeem principal plus interest at rates ranging from 2.6% to 5.0% are required; redeemable at the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas’ option, as a whole or in part, at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued
interest at any date on 30 days’ notice. The 2012A and 2012B bonds were issued for the refunding of the
1992, 1997 and 2009 Series bonds and to provide $7,000,000 for capital improvements. The 2012C bonds
were issued to finance working capital of $10,185,000 for the Department. On August 1, 2016 the
Department redeemed the 2012C bonds with excess reserves in order to reduce annual debt payments of
approximately $1,480,000.

On November 1, 2016 the Department issued a Series 2016 refunding revenue hond totaling $13,850,000.
Principal on the Bond shall be paid annually, on a graduated basis, on May 1 of each year, commencing May
1, 2017 with the final payment due May 1, 2031. The weighted average maturity of the Bond shall not
exceed 8.5 years. The Bond shalf bear interest at a fixed rate per annum for 96 months equivalent to 2.47%
and at a fixed rate per annum equivalent to 2.57% for the remaining 78 months. Interest will be payable
semiannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2017. The bond proceeds of the
Series 2016 bond will be invested until the optional redemption date of the Series 2011 bonds.

As a result of this refunding, $797,246 of deferred bond issuance costs was recognized and amortized over
the remaining life of the old bonds. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, $177,166 and $708,663,
respectively, remained in deferred bond costs and is reported as a deferred outflow of resources.

The following is a summary of the bonds payable activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively:

2016 Additions Retirements 2017
45,655,000 - {4,295,000) 41,360,000

2015 Additions Retirements 2016
60,115,000 13,550,000 (28,010,000} 45,655,000

13






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Aggregate payments of the bonds outstanding are as follows for the years ending December 31

Series 2012 Series 2016 Total

Principal:
2018 S 4,095,000 s 815,000 s 4,910,000
2019 4,195,000 240,000 5,035,000
2020 4,305,000 855,000 5,160,000
2021 4,445,000 880,000 5,325,000
2022 4,605,000 805,000 5,510,000
2023-2027 6,165,000 4,875,000 11,040,000
2028-2032 - 4,380,000 4,380,000
Thereafter - - -

S 27,810,000 = 13,550,000 S 471,360,000

Series 2012 Series 2016 Total

Interest:
2018 S 948,016 S 329,044 S 1,277,060
2019 845,293 308,319 1,153,612
2020 733,609 287,909 1,021,513
20271 600,386 265,366 865,752
2022 431,641 243,012 674,653
2023-2027 513,271 877,656 1,390,927
2028-2032 - 232,011 232,011
Thereafter - - -

] 4,072,216 S 2,543,317 s 6,615,533

The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas will maintain rates sufficient to produce net revenues equal to at
least 125% of the annual debt service. Net revenues are defined as all revenues derived from operations of
the electric system, including profits from all funds maintained under bond indenture except the project
fund, less extraordinary income items and after reduction for normal operating expenses {(exclusive of
depreciation and noncash items and interest expense). For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the Department was in compliance with this covenant.

All revenues derived from the operation of the Department shall be deposited in the Revenue Bond Fund.
Revenues deposited shall be expended into the following funds in the following order of priorities:
Operation and Maintenance Fund, Revenue Bond Fund, and Surplus Fund.

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

The Department implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subseqguent to the Measurement Date —~ an
amendment to GASB 68. The provisions of these statements were effective for financial statements for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2014, These statements establish standards for measuring and recognizing
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Plan Description

All full-time employees of the Department are participants of “The Retirement System of the City of North
Little Rock” (the “Non-uniformed Plan”) defined benefit plan. The provisions of the Non-uniformed Plan call
for employee contributions of 4% of gross earnings to be paid through payroll withholdings. Each month,
the Department contributes 9% of each employee’s monthly compensation.

The Non-uniformed Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit plan established under Arkansas state law.
The Non-uniformed Plan assets are administered by an independent fiduciary agent, but governed by a
Board of Trustees. The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to all
regular, full time, non-uniformed employees of the Department. The amount of benefits to be paid to any
participant depends solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.

Benefits Provided

The Non-uniformed Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement
benefits are determined as a percentage of the member’s Final Average Earnings.

Members are eligible to retire with a full benefit under the following conditions:
* Atage65
* Atage 62 with 5 years of service

Members may retire with a reduced benefit at age 55 with at least 10 years of service.
Members are eligible for disability benefits at age 50 with 10 years of service.

Death benefits are paid to a surviving spouse based upon age and length of service.

Contributions

For the Non-uniformed Plan as a whole, it is the actuary’s opinion that the city and member contributions of
13% as reguired by the Non-uniformed Plan are not expected to be sufficient to finance the cost of benefits
earned by members during the year. The recommended contribution level for the 2018 Plan Year for the
City as a whole is 18.74%. For 2017, the Department’s contributions to the Plan were $565,206.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The Plan’s collective net pension liability of $25,122,028 was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of January 1, 2018. Each component unit’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
component unit's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all
participating component units.

At December 31, 2017, the Department’s proportion was 27% and the Department recorded a liability of
56,782,948 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability,

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Department recognized pension expense of $822,650. At
December 31, 2017, the Department reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN {Continued)

Deferrad Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference hetween projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments $ 393,491 S 321,991
Changes of actuarial assumptions 858,758 1,661,862
Changes in proportion 355,278 49,871

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
onpension plan investments 623,950 327,079

S 2,231,477 S 2,360,803

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter
S 110,416 S 110,416 S {141,172} § {181,430) S (99,660) § 72,109
Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level of Percent of Pay (3.5% Growth)
Remaining Amortization Period 15 Years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 6.5%

Salary Increases 4.0% Annually
Mortality Table Based on the Retirement Plans 2014 Mortality Table
Average Service Life of Al Members 11.08 years
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 6: NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA}

The plan does not provide cost of living adjustments (COLA}, and none are anticipated or included in these
calculations.

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The target allocation of the
plan and the long-term expected real rates of return are summarized in the table below:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 40% 2.25%
Domestic Equity 40% 4.75%
Foreign Equity 12% 6.25%
Alternatives 4% 4.50%
Cash 4% 0.25%
Total 100%

Expected Inflation 2.50%

Single Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 6.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was
based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.50%. The projection of cash flows,
based on the assumptions made, found that the pension plan’s net position was not available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the calculated single discount rate
calculated was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Department’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate:

The following presents the Department’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the Department’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.50%) or one
percentage point higher {7.50%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.50%) {6.50%) (7.50%)
The Department's proportionate share
of the net pension liability S 9,629,367 S 6,782,948 S 4,790,059

The plan was amended effective January 1, 2018 to increase the employee contribution from 4% to 5% of
compensation. In addition to this increase, the form of the employee contribution was changed to a “picked
up” contribution, meaning that it is pre-tax to the employee. This reduced the impact of the increase on the
employee. The employer contribution was also increase to 10%, so that the total contribution to the plan is

now 15% of compensation.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMVIENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Utilities Accounting Department of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, under the direction of the
Department of Finance of the City, performs customer billing, collection services and accounts receivable
recordkeeping for the Department. The Utilities Accounting Department charges the Department for this
service based on the number of bills rendered. Charges for services totaled approximately $2,300,000 each
year for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Charges by the Department to the North Little Rock Street Department for the electricity usage amounted to
approximately $120,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

On January 30, 2017 a bond in the amount of 51,105,000 was issued from North Little Rock Electric
Department to the City of North Little Rock, creating the note receivable reflected on the balance sheet. The
bond has a maturity date of December 1, 2031 with an interest rate of 2.25%.

NOTE 8: LITIGATION

in the normal course of business, the Department is, from time to time, subject to allegations that may or do
result in litigation. The Department evaluates such allegations by conducting investigations to determine
the validity of each potential claim, Based upon the advice of legal counsel, management records an
estimate of the amount of ultimate expected loss, if any. Based on management’s evaluation, no amounts
were accrued for expected losses as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. Events could occur that would cause
the estimate of the ultimate loss to differ materially in the near term.

NOTE 9: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Department employees participate in another post-employment benefit plan {the “OPEB Plan”) sponsored
by the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas. GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (“GASB 45”) requires that employers providing
post-employment benefits other than pensions record and disclose annual other post-employment benefit
{“OPEB”) cost and a net OPEB obligation in their financial statements and disclose other information about
their OPEB plans, including the unfunded actuariat liability (“UAAL"}.

The OPEB Plan allows employees to continue heaith insurance coverage beyond retirement. Although
retirees are required to pay 100% of the group premium for continued coverage, the higher the cost of
covering retirees results in a subsidy to those retirees, which is reflected in the recorded OPEB cost.

Based on an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2017, the Department recorded OPEB cost of
§11,335 for 2017; 520,286 for 2016; and $16,105 for 2015. The net OPEB obligation was $278,640,
$267,305, and $247,019 as of December 31, 2017, December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2015,
respectively. The Department’s share of the UAAL, which is not recorded in the financial statements, was
$238,620 as of the actuarial date of January 1, 2017 and $253,999 as of the actuarial date of January 1,
2015. The UAAL wiil be included in annual OPEB cost over an amortization period of 30 years. The OPEB
obligation and UAAL were computed using a discount rate of 5.5% and healthcare cost inflation rate of 5%.
Additional OPEB Plan disclosures, including required supplementary information, required by GASB 45 may
be found in the 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 9: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN {Continued)

The projection of future benefit payment for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of cccurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARC of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future.

NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS

In 2007, the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas entered into a power purchase agreement with the Missouri
Joint Municipal Electric Utility Commission {"MIJMEUC”}). Under the agreement, the Department is
committed to acquire approximately 60 megawatts of generating capacity from the Plum Point Energy
Stations, which was constructed near Osceola, Arkansas and began power generation in 2010. The
agreement runs through December 31, 2050, but may end prior to that date if the plant is retired, if certain
termination provisions apply, or if otherwise agreed to by the parties. Under the agreement, the
Department will pay its proportionate share of the fixed and variable costs of operating the plant and its
share of MIMEUC's administrative and other costs associated with the contract.

The City of North Little Rock, Arkansas has an agreement with Entergy whereby Entergy has interconnected
its transmission facilities with the City’s facilities to transmit the hydroelectric power and energy generated
at Murray Hydroelectric Plant {“Plant”) to the electric system. The agreement continues as long as the City
is authorized to operate the Plant, unless terminated earlier by either party on not less than 60 months
advance written notice. Rates are determined based upon agreed-upon formulas, with billings to be made
on a monthly basis.

During 2012, the City of North Littie Rock established an adjustable Energy Cost Recovery Rider (“ECR") as a
component of its electric rate structure. The ECR Is designed to generate increases or decreases in billings
to customers depending on increases or decreases in the cost of purchasing and providing power to its
customers.

During 2013, the City entered into an energy-only contract in order to capitalize on the cost-effective
delivery of power from the Midcontinent Independent System Operator (“MISC”) market. Under the
contract, the City will begin managing the output of its generation resources in the market by selling excess
energy into the market at the current market price. When those resources produce insufficient energy, the
City will purchase replacement energy from the market at the current market price.

NOTE 11: TRANSFER OF NET ASSETS

On March 13, 2017 the North Little Rock City Council passed Resolution No. 9168 amending the 2017 budget
for the City of North Little Rock. This amendment was made to re-distribute the budget for Utilities
Accounting Department by excluding remaining information technology staff that would remain in UAD, to
the North Little Rock Electric budget for the remainder of the year. The goal was to streamline operations,
improve efficiency and utilize staff to increase and enhance service to utility customers. Effective April 1,
2017, the Customer Service Section of Utilities Accounting Department was transferred to North Little Rock
Electric’s budget and financials. In total, $9,109,187 of assets, $9,132,747 of liabilities, and $409,048 of net
assets was transferred.

19






CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Operating revenues:

Sale of electricity, net of uncollectible accounts

Operating expenses:
Purchased electricity
Depreciation
Distribution system maintenance
Other distribution expenses

Customer records and collection expense

General and administrative
Franchise tax
Operating expenses
Generation plant maintenance
General plant maintenance
Other generation plant expenses
Conservation
Property and liahility insurance
Regulatory fees

Total operating expenses

Operating income
Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expenses)
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses)
income before transfers out
Transfers out

Increase {decrease} in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Transfer of Net Assets from North Little Rock

Utllities Accounting Department

Net position, end of year

See independent auditor’s report.

Original and 2017 Actual Over
Final Budget Actual {Under) Budget
89,000,000 5 89,964,914 S 964,914
44,372,000 45,190,964 818,964
9,088,000 9,088,223 223
3,395,000 3,151,952 {243,048}
3,141,000 3,152,319 11,319
3,108,000 3,107,790 {210}
999,000 1,252,271 253,271
1,052,000 1,052,063 63
1,120,000 1,187,133 67,133
595,000 650,884 55,884
576,000 706,583 130,583
195,000 439,739 244,739
430,500 363,416 (67,084)
308,000 308,347 347
220,000 207,291 {12,709)
68,599,500 69,858,975 1,259,475
20,400,500 20,105,939 (294,561)
50,000 196,283 146,283
(1,917,000} {1,906,113} 10,887
1,130,000 1,336,963 206,963
(737,000) (372,867) 364,133
19,663,500 19,733,072 69,572
12,000,000 12,000,000 -
7,663,500 7,733,072 69,572
121,439,995 121,439,995 -
- 409,048 409,048
129,103,495 S 129,582,115 S 478,620
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF THE DEPARTMENT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

LAST 10 YEARS*

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Department's proportion of the net pension liability
Department's proportionate share of the net pension liahility
Department's covered-employee payroli

Department's proportienate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan Fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension kability

*Information for years prior to 2015 is not available.

See independent auditor's report.

2017 2016 2015
27.0% 25.4% 25.9%

$ 6,782,948 $ 6,668,532 $ 4,825,855
$ 6,280,067 $ 5,583,222 $ 5,076,918
108.01% 119.44% 95.05%
65.44% 62.24% 69.11%
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST 10 YEARS*

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributicns in relation to the actuarially determined coentribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

*Information for years prior to 2014 is not avaitable.

See independent quditor's report.

2017 2016 2015 2014
S 970,270 § 743,127 5 574,707 S 562,954
{565,206) (334,398) {304,615} {309,917}
405,064 408,729 270,092 253,037

$ 6,280,067

9.00%

$ 5,583,222

6.00%

$ 5,076,918

6.00%

$ 5,169,458

6.00%
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CRAFT, VEACH & COMPANY, PLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the City of North Little Rock
Electric Department (the “Department”), a component unit of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated July 24,
2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Department’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

P.O. Box 13986  Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massic Road ¢ North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 |Fax (501) 753-6706
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
July 24, 2018

P.O. Box 13986  Maumelle, AR 72113 | 8410 Counts Massie Road e North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 | Fax (501) 753-6706
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CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT DECEMBER 31, 2017

Findings required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards:

Reference
Number Finding

None.

Prior year findings required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards:

Reference
Number Finding

None,
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Mayor Joe A. Smith City Council Members

Clty Clel‘k Diane Whltbey Ward 1 Debl ROS'S 753—0733
Beth White 758-2738

City Attor ney Amy Fields Ward 2 Linda Robinson 945-8820
Maurice Taylor 690-6444

Ward 3 Steve Baxter 804-0928

Ron Harris 758-2877

Ward 4 Murry Witcher 835-0009

Charlie Hight 944-0670

“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.

in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday then subject to change by City Council)
For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations. By A. de Tocqueville
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City Council Agenda | 2
September 10, 2018 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Karen Scott, Finance Director, City of North Little Rock, Electric Department

Financial statements and independent Auditor’s report, December 31, 2017 and
2016.

PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS






City Council Agenda | 3
September 10, 2018 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

CONSENT AGENDA
None.
NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS
R-18-179 Mayor Smith
Appointing Jay Carman to the Wastewater Treatment Commission

R-18-180 Mayor Smith
Establishing the Thomas Cemetery Advisory Committee; appointing members of
the Committee

R-18-181  Council Members Robinson and Taylor
Accepting the low bid of and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a
contract with Smithworth, Inc. d/b/a On-Line Construction for the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) project, Poe Street Improvements Phase 1T —
Street and Drainage Improvements Project, in the amount of $156,790.00

R-18-182 Mayor Smith
Certifying local government endorsement of First Orion Corp. to participate in
the tax back program as authorized by Section 15-4-2706(d) of the Consolidated
Incentive Act of 2003

R-18-183  Mayor Smith
Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County
Tax Collector against certain real properties as a result of grass cutting expenses

and abatement of other nuisances
Convene a public hearing






City Council Agenda | 4
September 10, 2018 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

ORDINANCES

0-18-73 Council Member Taylor
Approving a request for waiver of screening and landscaping buffer requirements
for certain real property located at 760 Michaela Drive (applicant: Premier Care

Pharmacy)

O-18-74  Council Members Robinson and Taylor
Reclassifying certain property located at 2018 Crutcher from R-3 to R-4 by
amending Ordinance No. 7697 (applicant: Fennell Purifoy Architects)

PPUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it
to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened; speakers have 3 minutes to address

their topic

Respectfully submitted,

By,

Diane Whitbey, CAMC / MMC
City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to Live by:
“You are never too old to set another goal, or to dream another dream.” Aristotle

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go to the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.







August 27, 2018

Six o’clock P.M.

North Little Rock City Hall Council Chambers
300 Main Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas

The regular meeting of the North Little Rock City Council scheduled for Monday, August 27, 2018,
was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Honorable Mayor Joe A. Smith.

The roll having been called and the following Council Members answered to their names: DEBI
ROSS, BETH WHITE, LINDA ROBINSON, STEVE BAXTER, RON HARRIS, CHARLIE HIGHT
and MURRY WITCHER (7/0). Council Member MAURICE TAYLOR was not present during roll
call. City Clerk Diane Whitbey, Deputy City Clerk Talor Shinn and City Attorney Amy Fields were
also present.

The prayer and pledge of allegiance were led by Council Member Hight.

On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Ross and by consent of
all members present, the minutes from the North Little Rock City Council meeting and a Special Call
meeting held on Monday, August 13, 2018, were approved, accepted and filed as prepared by the City
Clerk (7/0).

Council Member Taylor entered the council chambers at 6:01 p.m.

On the motion of Council Member Baxter and seconded by Council Member Ross, and by consent of

all members present, communications #1, 2, 3, and 4, were not read, but were accepted and filed (8/0).

1. Clark McGlothin, letter to Mayor Joe A. Smith re: resignation from North Little Rock Waste Water
Commission, effective August 20, 2018.

2. Ayanna Raulston, letter to Margaret Powell, Director of Governmental Affairs re: thank you to City
of North Little Rock for hosting Sister City Program and sharing her experiences during Exchange
Program Trip.

3. C. Tad Bohannon, Chief Executive Officer, Central Arkansas Water letter re: Proposed Issuance of
Parity Bonds.

4.. Paul Leopoulous, Executive Director, Thea Foundation, letter to Mayor Joe A. Smith re: Economic
and Development Benefit Thea Foundation brought to North Little Rock.

On the motion of Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member Robinson, and by consent

of all members present, communication #5 was read, accepted and filed (8/0).

5. Melissa Ervin, Community Development Director, Notice of Public Hearings and Funding
Auvailability for Fiscal Year 2019: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home
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Investment Partnership (HOME) funds. Public hearings scheduled for August 28, 29 and 30, 2018.

Mayor Smith invited Mr. Gary Sipes, Executive Director, Arkansas Chiefs of Police Association and
North Little Rock Police Chief Mike Davis to come forward. Mayor Smith said Mr. Sipes is a retired
North Little Rock Police Officer and a former Police Chief. Mr. Sipes said the Arkansas Chiefs
Association selected Mayor Smith as Arkansas Mayor of the Year for 2018. In 2010, the association
looked at ways to make law enforcement agencies in the state more professional. Training, policies
and best practices were needed. The majority of state agencies have 10 or less staff. Arkansas joined
27 other states by creating a Law Enforcement Accreditation Program. An agency has to meet 188
standards before being considered for accreditation. Mr. Sipes presented a Certificate of Accreditation
to North Little Rock Police Chief Mike Davis, making the North Little Rock Police Department the
12' in the state to receive the designation. Chief Davis thanked the City Council and Mayor for their
continued support.

No one signed in to speak on legislation.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

CONSENT AGENDA

On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Hight, and all members
present having voted “aye”, consent items R-18-162, R-18-163, R-18-164, and R-18-165 were
unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-18-162 (RESOLUTION NO. 9497 ~ MAYOR SMITH)
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING ARTIS M. BOYKIN TO THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK CIVIL
SERVICE COMMISSION; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was adopted (8/0).

R-18-163 (RESOLUTION NO. 9498 —- MAYOR SMITH)
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MELODY WILLIFORD TO THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMISSION; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was adopted
(8/0).

R-18-164 (RESOLUTION NO. 9499 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING CARLTON M. “SONNY” RHODES TO THE NORTH LITTLE
ROCK LIBRARY COMMISSION: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was adopted (8/0). Mayor
Smith invited Mr. Rhodes to come forward to receive the Oath of Office which was administered by
the City Clerk, Ms. Whitbey and thanked him for his service.

North Little Rock City Council Meeting 8/27/2018
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R-18-165 (RESOLUTION NO. 9500 -- COUNCIL MEMBERS ROSS AND WHITE)

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY
CLERK TO ENTER INTQ A CONTRACT WITH RIVER RIDGE CONSTRUCTION LLC FOR
THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROJECT, MARION STREET
FROM 18™ TO 16™ — STREET AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, IN THE
AMOUNT OF $311,507.00; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was adopted (8/0).

Mayor Smith thanked Ms. Boykin and Ms. Williford (who were not present) for their continued
service to the city as commission members.

NEW BUSINESS

R-18-166 (RESOLUTION NO. 9501 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A REAL
ESTATE DEVELOPMENT AND OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT, FOR PROPERTY
LOCATED ON MAIN AND 6™ STREETS, WITH J. CHANDLER & COMPANY, INC; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Baxter and
seconded by Council Member Ross. Mayor Smith advised the city previously gave Mr. Chandler an
option (to purchase) on a property on Main Street where the city is now building a three-story building.
Mr. Chandler agreed to void the option in exchange for this property (next to the Downtown Argenta
Plaza site). Council Member Ross asked about the length of time, which is up to one-year. Mayor
Smith said Mr. Chandler is working with potential restaurant tenants and needs the time. When the
city begins dirt work on the Plaza, it will also do the dirt work on this property and bill Mr. Chandler
for his portion. 1f Mr. Chandler has not purchased it by the time the Plaza is finished the city could
use if for parking or green space. On the previous motion, and by consent of all members present, the
resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-18-167 (RESOLUTION NO. 9502 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
THE ARGENTA PLAZA; AND FOR OTHER PUROSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by
Council Member Baxter and seconded by Council Member Harris. Mayor Smith said construction
plans were finished and bid. The bid came in $800,000.00 over the original amount. After meeting
with the architect and contractors, some things were changed which reduced costs by $200,000.00.
However, removing additional items would affect the quality of the project. Mayor Smith said a
consultant working on the Justice Building project advised the costs of construction have been rising
about one percent per month over the past 18 months. Another reason for the increase in costs, was an
increase in the size of the plaza. Mayor Smith said the addition of the First Orion Building (which will
bring 200-300 new jobs to North Little Rock) resulted in an increase in the overall plaza site by about
25%. Current property sales and future sales will cover expenses. Council Member Ross said none of
the recently passed one-cent sales tax funds will be used for this project. Council Hight asked if any
funds would be left in the Special Projects Infrastructure Fund. Mayor Smith reminded council
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members there is not a contingency fund on this project and said that everything has been bid and
prices are set. On the previous motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was
unanimously adopted (8/0). ($665,500.00)

R-18-168 (RESOLUTION NO. 9503 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR THE DESIGN, SCHEMATICS
AND CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION SERVICES PROVIDED BY TAGGART ARCHITECTS
FOR THE ARGENTA PLAZA: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Council
Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member Hight, and by consent of all members present, the
resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (8299,925.00)

R-18-169 (RESOLUTION NOQ. 9504 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION BY THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK POLICE
DEPARTMENT FOR FUNDS UNDER THE 2018 EDWARD BRYNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE
GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made
by Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public
hearing. There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the
previous motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted
(8/0).

R-18-170 (RESOLUTION NO. 9505 ~ MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 307 WEST 20™ STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Ross
and seconded by Council Member White. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being no
one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by
consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (amount §3,363.28)

R-18-171 (RESOLUTION NO. 9506 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 910 NORTH C STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES;
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Ross. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner: Maybell
Cole)
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R-18-172 (RESOLUTION NO. 9507 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 1701 WEST LONG 17™ STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID
STRUCTURES:; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID
NUISANCE: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council
Member Robinson and seconded by Council Member Baxter. Mayor Smith convened a public
hearing. There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the
previous motion, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted
(8/0). (owner: Louise V. Mitchell)

R-18-173 (RESOLUTION NO. 9508 ~ MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 2216 WEST 16™ STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES;
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROQPERTY OWNERS TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-18-174 (RESOLUTION NO. 9509 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 128 % DAVIS STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES;
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY QOWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOQSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner: Alta
Bookout)

R-18-175 (RESOLUTION NO. 9510 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 116 S. SPRUCE STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES:
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNERS TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member
Robinson and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There
being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion,
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and by consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owners:
Clarence and Gloria Nalls)

R-18-176 (RESOLUTION NO. 9511 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS. HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 120 S. SPRUCE STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TO CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES;
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNERS TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Baxter,
and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being no
one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by
consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owners: Clarence and
Gloria Nalls)

R-18-177 (RESOLUTION NO. 9512 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES AND OTHER STRUCTURES
LOCATED AT 413 DIVISION STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
TQ CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING SAID STRUCTURES:
PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE;:
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Baxter
and seconded by Council Member Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing, There being no
one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by
consent of all members present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0). (owner: Emma Heflin)

R-18-178 (RESOLUTION NO. 9513 — MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS OF LIENS TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS AS A RESULT OF GRASS CUTTING
EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT OF OTHER NUISANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was
read. A motion to adopt was made by Council Member Ross and seconded by Council Member
Taylor. Mayor Smith convened a public hearing. There being no one present wishing to be heard, the
public hearing was adjourned. On the previous motion, and by consent of all members present, the
resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).

0-18-70 (ORDINANCE NOQ. 9038 - MAYOR SMITH})

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE, 2018 QUOTA ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. 8980) FOR
THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK COMMUNITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT, ELECTRIC
DEPARTMENT, AND FIT 2 LIVE DEPARTMENT: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Council Member Ross and seconded by Council
Member Taylor, and by consent of all members present, the readings were suspended (8/0). On the
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motion of Council Member Taylor and seconded by Council Member Ross, and the roll having been
called, and all members present having voted in the affirmative, the ordinance was unanimously
adopted (8/0). Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0).

0-18-71 (ORDINANCE NO, 9039 — COUNCIL MEMBERS WHITE AND ROSS)

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND ABANDONING A PORTION OF RIGHT OF WAY
LOCATED ON WEST 19™ STREET BETWEEN MARION STREET AND ALLEN STREET IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by Council Member
Ross, and by consent of all members present, the readings were suspended (8/0). Council Member
Ross asked to be added as a cosponsor. Mayor Smith said this is part of the demolition and
reconstruction of Silver City Courts. On the motion of Council Member Witcher and seconded by
Council Member Taylor, and the roll having been called, and all members present having voted in the
affirmative, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0). Without objection, Mayor Smith convened
a public hearing, There being no one present wishing to be heard, the public hearing was adjourned.
Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0). (applicant: NLR Housing Authority)

0-18-72 (ORDINANCE NO. 9040 — COUNCIL MEMBERS BAXTER AND HARRIS)

AN ORDINANCE RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7521 YOUNG ROAD
IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS. FROM C-3 ZONING CLASSIFICATION
TO PLANNED USE DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ZONING CLASSIFICATION BY AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 7697; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was
read. Without objection, Council Member Harris was added as a cosponsor. On the motion of Council
Member Baxter and seconded by Council Member Hight, and by consent of all members present, the
readings were suspended (8/0). On the motion of Council Member Baxter and seconded by Council
Member Ross, and by consent of all members present, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0).
Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0). (applicant: Thomas Engineering)

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr., Bobby Taylor continues to have issues with his neighbor and trash. He went to court this month
and his neighbor didn’t show up. The Judge issued a warrant for failure to appear. His neighbor has
had three garage sales without a permit in the last five months (the city allows one per quarter
otherwise it is considered a business). The trash piles are causing rats which are entering his (M.
Taylor’s) home. The court won’t do anything. Mayor Smith said he has no control over the judicial
system, Mr. Taylor suggested the city bring out a truck and pick up the trash. Mayor Smith said the
city has to follow the law. Mr. Taylor said someone from Waste Management called him regarding his
issue with misused recycling bins. Mayor Smith said he will meet with Regional Solid Waste
tomorrow regarding negotiations to extend the contract the city has in place. Mayor Smith said it looks
like there will be at least a one-dollar increase (from $2.99 to $3.99 per month). Mr, James Ard asked
the Police Chief to come forward and thanked him and the department for how they handled a situation
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where two youth had ran away from DHS (Department of Human Services). Council Member
Robinson said there have been recycling issues with residents mixing/putting things into the recycling
bin that shouldn’t be there. Mayor Smith said the contamination rate issue is part of the on-going
negotiations for recycling. There are two neighborhoods where the contamination level is above 90%,
meaning 9 out of 10 carts are contaminated. Mayor Smith said the city is prepared to start picking up
containers from violators. Waste Management plans to give two watnings before removing a
container. The resident will still have to pay the fee even if their container is removed for repeated
contamination. China is no longer accepting recycled materials from the United States so there is no
longer a market for some of the materials. Council Member White has had complaints about liquid
leaking from garbage trucks. Mr. Harold Ford, Sanitation Director told her the trucks are not water
tight. Some of the issues are due to garbage bins either being left open or not having a lid. When it
rains, water accumulates inside the container and is dumped into the truck with the trash. This is an
issue with recycling containers as well. Council Member Baxter said city code requires that
garbage/trash containers have a lid and regulates maximum size. Council Member Ross referenced the
inclusion of plastic bags (Kroger/Wal-Mart bags) in the current contract for recycling. Council
Member Ross said the public needs to be educated. Council Member Ross asked for an update on the
Police and Fire projects which are being funded by the sales tax. Mayor Smith said an architect was
chosen for two fire stations. One will be in Levy and the other will be in Burns Park. These were the -
selections of the Fire Chief and his assistants. In Levy, there were two properties (approximately 6
blocks from the existing station) under consideration that had to be appraised. Station 7 on McCain
will be remodeled at a cost of about % million dollars. The Maumelle Station will be fixed/remodeled.
Station 8 (old Conway Highway) would relocate to Burns Park, (which would provide quick access to
the Interstate). Regarding the Police building, an architect from Kansas City was selected. A contract
has not been signed yet. This was delayed due to property exchanges that had to take place (between
North Little Rock School District, Arkansas National Guard and City of North Little Rock). Mayor
Smith said he was concerned about rising construction costs. Council Member Witcher referenced the
current City & Town Magazine which is published by the Arkansas Municipal League (AML). Mayor
Smith is currently serving as President of the state-wide organization. Mayor Smith advised that AML
Head Legal Counsel was named Executive Director during the annual Executive Committee Meeting
last week. Council Member Taylor asked what the plan is for the Fire Station located on the eastern
side of the city. Mayor Smith said the city just purchased the property. The Firefighters who are
stationed there love the station location, separate bedrooms and kitchen area. That station was not on
the list to be renovated or rebuilt. Council Member Taylor said his constituents were told the station
would be temporary and that a permanent building and possible police substation would be built in the
future. Mayor Smith suggested they talk with the firefighters stationed there. Council Member
Robinson agreed with Council Member Taylor’s comments. Ms. Whitbey reminded residents of the
upcoming (Labor Day) holiday. Garbage, trash and recycling routes will be delayed one-day all week.

There being no further business to come before the Council, and on the motion of Council Member
Witcher and seconded by Council Member Ross, and by consent of all members present, the meeting
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was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. (8/0), until the next regularly scheduled meeting to be held on Monday,
September 10, 2018, at six o’clock p.m. in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, located at 300
Main Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas.

APPROVED:

MAYOR JOE A. SMITH

ATTEST:
DIANE WHITBEY, CITY CLERK
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF
SCREENING AND LANDSCAPING BUFFER REQUIREMENTS
FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 760
MICHAELA DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, a request has been made by Richard Chapman, Premier Pharmacy
Care, 2400 East Kiehl Avenue, Sherwood, Arkansas, 72120, seeking a waiver of the
screening and landscaping buffer requirements of Section 15, Table A of the North Little
Rock Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance No. 7697) for property located at 760 Michaela
Drive, more particularly described as Lot 17, D & B Commercial Park Addition, City of
North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas (see letter with site map from applicant
attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission held
on November 14, 2017, the Planning Commission approved the applicant’s site plan
subject to the requirement that the development meet the requirements of the Screening
and Landscaping ordinance, including a full buffer along the east property line (6
affirmative votes, 3 absent).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That a waiver of screening and landscaping buffer requirements of
Section 15, Table A of the North Little Rock Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance No. 7697)
for the east property line of property located at 760 Michaela Drive in the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas, is hereby approved. (See maps attached hereto as Exhibits B and
C and incorporated herein by reference.)

SECTION 2: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 3: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 4: It is hereby found and determined that the existing trees on the east
property line of the subject property provide an adequate buffer between the properties,
that the adjacent property to the east side of the lot is farmland; that the waiver of buffer
requirements as provided for herein is immediately necessary in order to insure the proper
and orderly growth of this land and the proper and orderly growth of the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
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health, safety and welfare, THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and
this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:

q g s i

Mo eee g, Qe

Council Member Maurice Ta}rlorlrzzjijﬂ:{:’ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Amy Beckman'Figdlds, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF

FILED [04S  AM. P.M.
By ﬂ : pl_‘LQ(XS
pate 0 -4-1%

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY (). MSSC'f L

J
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¥, PREMIER
iaPHARiACY
CARE

To Mayor Joe Smith, August 7, 2018

I request a waiver on constructing an 8 foot wooden fence and planting trees on the east side of the
property on lot 17 D and B Commerclsl. The reason is because the land adjacent to the east side of lot
17 D and 8 Commercial Is farm land and no humans live there. There are more naturally occurring trees
on the east side of the lot than the plans require and they are approved trees (please see attached site
plan).

Please grant this walver to avoid unnecessary investment in these projects which allows these dollars
to be spent more wisely for the 100 plus employees that will be working at this pharmacy location,

Thank you for your consideration.

R Lo

Richard Chapman, RPh, COO

2400 E. Kiehl Avenue
Sherwood, AR 72120
501-992-1006 O
501-992-1013 F

A






B \.1
.. i
P i
: : I
i .
3 i g4
iﬂa:ﬂg H 0 - 1E
5 L) wg
P Y i Z AZ
1 B ", ﬁ
4 S, 3 -
SN . g
: — O ~ £
- —
: g mm Wes
B i A o7
B : ‘_ rorauhm..:tﬂswhm- . M.n.ul_.
¥ . . D )
: H = [
Natcag . g
I | WE& B Dm ]
Zi ! _. Foene g ; HM m :
5 *rwIn I 2 g ST LROUTERRAL PLAKE TG0 CUET LEZATOHT AKD EMENECHS B
kA t Bl SnCPLATY A w PORSST, MM ST MRIC, TRXCE TOOEY. (RASING UTRJTY RITGAME
w — . : H- AT QT e m LECATO ARD PREDIE Q00T DR
T T A THE EWTRASTON I S OOMALY CAEOMD 4
210 : e m gqg:ﬂ“ﬂ&?.iuﬂﬂp?%%?
=i a " b KLOCATS oF ‘il écgﬂrﬂbs'ﬂg
Fig [ i 3 EADIGOIONTS FIOTH N 00 RO R HERUANCK [ 3T Taoc
Fi51 H . ELED % A3 DOVE EAACT L7 CMALLIE. THE SONTETER busT e, e
oo 1 E - £ gﬁf?:&‘ib.gﬁbﬂggsﬂ)thau
3 : Q B}l « Te FAEPELED AR T S o P i
N = ~
4, CRNITLACTOR 15 RIZPOUTTLE FO% COMPLLINGT XA ooy -
i w _ : 3 2 “:Eﬂgﬂmmﬂgu:ﬂqﬂgs.ﬁuﬂﬁta%aﬁ“cn mchm._ -
. | TAIRGE SR, -
i [ g . 3 Sropr DPAR, ADRLACE O EITERS DI CAMAETD OF Litdoe CURD AN 3z o]
N P> =i P Eeons SRS RIS SRS, S
“ : m : v m TR AL YO e LIS ROMTGrRY S, GG 10 G 7 ﬁM. W
3 < b
| ez : i Z ‘ iy S S
i P —- H £, SNTALT D®E Y 201 ot < =
i H W fm ) 3z B i < Eo ! — H w.c. vhh-gnn?xﬁ,aﬂﬂg.hwn«ﬂuiunﬂggm.ga b <
E B H L T uJ; .- - _ 1 dﬁ‘%ﬁqJ.nnnnEahﬁaﬂngﬂlni FALLURL R ﬂu D -
H e Fa i e e T = - % & 39,50 T L M o ANT SPROPERLY PLACED CTartaTE €8 % o
; : ~E g x i H ey fnliniy
H N i d H e & . . 3 H 7. . STACY NOTTH LTTLE FiT FRE UARTHAL 431 PYLASTERIS, A7 5y MT Q M W
e [T F 2] - 2 | Eemrb ) L a2 T LECATON WG RETIADNTE e T L, SHEE OF T 6 B W g i 2
= |h m : A 2 ' .J.Hﬂ.” [ - PRE e i iatiad { 85....5«.. M I M et
z - T : AREY " b e e gt wogzy
E o T _ AN (| besE
£ = i L e . L x5
Eel P . H < S o o4 A7 / 4 % T [x]
= = : H i i S B e e A = L Db T
ES P PR B - 7 ) W A R RO e A ! e ] E
K= 43 3 . - i 2 3 i, b &
g i} H __. a
=i= g
= auwu * ._ - Z
= uuk‘mn Y - ot
- m _ "
o ; D. il
oL
T Ol
; .
| i 1
H X .
H ! {
: [
{ Wt

f. GITan FIRMTS PRSA T2 GIHG AT TTRECT GUTE O% QT
MY~

kX PAVCMLKT LADSKET AN PASIGHS LOT STPmiC D, N
BT T ILOIFNTATS SN B MARLIL O UNTRSU TRAITE Barviam, i
T DoRD T FIRESS THAT RAROHC TUACLE O Uity wr 1

ITTED: 1Hard e
:55-;}
L .v("_‘ 1l
Qﬂdj‘j T :mn

- TS L COMTUCTN o AOT ROV $I ATLF, CGIME TATDE SOt 0% g
SRR iy Do ey =] PAVEDT LeASixpes Wi OUT FIVOE S0avemsiy FRat A D1y I Hef THOKAS
] e ) o AL it ==L T X UL FOoK TRANIE SO0CES SAPLNINGTL, K AT JCNASY X205 10 2E . D pyTares
B R i e p e - - - - EQIEAED, CONTEET TNTE EREMETRING [0S Ml Pkl S a7)- 3451 oy ENGINEZRING ‘ “‘ﬁ
e e g el OPD ATy O ) L * g (DLIRCT mIAdion AN APTRQVAL 1T COMISAUCTION DN o Gl 16 g Y CoMEANY
Dar3 P T} IR T A W AT ORI AFTEL AN DG g?ﬂﬂz"gisgﬂg 57 o
LTS Cinw O, ey T TOORAAT TRATIG SOMDEl, SOWees L eSS
PACTOTINGE WO WIS (oG THE CRREE OF CENOTIEBEN, 09 LT RS, K. LT WG A Texd
FREMATTN 30k ) T S -TadediEr PAC S ~riz-ead






F’ujblllc Healmxng C@se # 2@1 -2 EXHIBIT

1 inch = 400 feet

Community Planning

v‘ " 0 200 400 800 1,200

Feet

Date: 8/10/2018






1%1%//%&%
: AN

A

Dale: 8/23/2018

S B & AN : |
T A 60 - . Foate e 3 AL BB\ T R o R NN

5o g

=]
1inch = 100 feet

%
&
(=
=
©
@
T
@“.







0-18-"]4

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 2018 CRUTCHER STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK,
ARKANSAS, FROM R-3 TO R-4 BY AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 7697
OF THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, application was duly made by Fennell Purifoy Architects, 100 Morgan
Keegan Drive, Little Rock, Arkansas, 72202, seeking a rezone of the herein described land from
R-3 to R-4, which application was duly considered and approved (8 affirmative votes, 1 absent)
by the North Little Rock Planning Commission at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof held on
August 14, 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1. That Ordinance No. 7697 of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the
“Zoning Ordinance”), is hereby amended by changing the classification of certain land from R-3
to R-4 to recognize an existing multi-family development, said property being located at 2018
Crutcher Street, in North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas, and more particularly described
as:

Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4, Windemere Hills Subdivision, City of North Little Rock, Pulaski
County, Arkansas (See maps attached hereto collectively as Exhibit A.)

SECTION 2. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 3. That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable
and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such invalidity shall not
affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 4: 1t is hereby found and determined that the City benefits from residential
development within its boundaries, that the rezoning of the above-described land as provided for
herein to allow industrial development will not be detrimental to or interfere with other occupants
in the area and is immediately necessary in order to insure the proper and orderly growth of this
land and of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate
preservation of the public health, safety and welfare; THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby
declared to exist and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval.





PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSORS: ATTEST:

Council Member Linda Robinson &-753{5*_1 Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
C

Council Member Maurice Taylor b&\rﬂﬂt/

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Amy Beckk@%‘bields, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF

FILED [0 {5 AM. P.M.
Bym .f Q;Q(JS
pate_ Q%19

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY Q MSS Cr /

27






EXHIBIT

Rezone Case #2018-16

Rezone #2018-16
Hillside Point (NLR Housing Authority)

To rezone from R-3 to R-4
to allow Multi-family.
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING JAY CARMAN TO THE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMISSION; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, a vacancy exists on the Wastewater Treatment Commission in the
position previously held by Clark McGlothin, who has resigned prior to the expiration of
his term, ending March 26, 2019; and

WHEREAS, Jay Carman wishes to serve on the Wastewater Treatment
Commission, is well qualified for the position, and has completed a Personal Information
Sheet, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk’s Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Jay Carman is hereby appointed to a position on the
Wastewater Treatment Commission to serve the remainder of Clark McGlothin’s term,
said term to expire March 26, 2019.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
e ' S
Qoo
Mayor Joe A. Smith hﬂg ’¥— ' Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
b T a

Amy Becknian | elds City Attorney FILED JO 45~ AM. PM
BY e 1 ield 5

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF = :
DATE 7-418

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY % ’ hama
l D
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE THOMAS CEMETERY
ADVISORY COMMITTEE; APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE
COMMITTEE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 9437 passed on May 29, 2018, the North Little
Rock City Council (“City Council”) authorized the City Attorney to initiate condemnation and
eminent domain proceedings against an abandoned cemetery known as Thomas Cemetery located
on Division Street in the City of North Little Rock (“City”); and

WHEREAS, the City Attorney has initiated an action in Pulaski County Circuit Court to
acquire the property by eminent domain; and

WHEREAS, the Pulaski County Circuit Court has entered an order granting the City
immediate possession of the cemetery pending full resolution of the eminent domain proceedings;
and

WHEREAS, individuals in our community have expressed interest ensuring the
maintenance and historic preservation of this long-abandoned cemetery; and

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to create a committee to oversee and coordinate
maintenance, upkeep, and ongoing historical research as to the cemetery and the individuals buried
there.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION I: That there is hereby created and established the Thomas Cemetery Advisory
Committee (“Committee”) for the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas which shall exist from and
after the passage of this Resolution until such time that it is terminated by resolution of City
Council.

SECTION 2:  Composition. That the Thomas Cemetery Advisory Committee (“the
Committee™) shall consist of seven (7) members. Initial and successive members shall be
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The initial members of the Committee
shall serve staggered terms, as set forth herein. Upon completion of initial terms, terms thereafter
shall be for a period of four (4) years.

That the initial members, having expressed their desire to serve on the Committee, are well
qualified and have previously completed Personal Information Sheets, copies of which are on file
with the City Clerk’s Office, shall be:

Member Initial Term
Betty Harp, Chairman 4 years
Jacquenette Armstrong 4 years

Teresa Clark 4 years





Jan Davenport 3 years

Jeff Dumboski 3 years
Steven Tiner 2 years
Lisa Winkleman 2 years

SECTION 3: Rules.

(a) At its first official meeting, the Committee shall elect a Vice Chairman from among
its members.

(b)  The Committee shall hold public meetings and shall take reasonable steps to inform
the public about all meetings. The Committee shall comply with the Arkansas Freedom of
Information Act.

(c) The Committee shall adopt, and may modify, rules for the conduct of its business,
and shall keep a record of its transactions, findings and determinations. The rules shall provide
for regular quarterly meetings and special meetings, as required from time to time, at the call of
the Chairman (or Vice Chairman in the event of an extended absence, or at the specific request, of
the Chairman) OR upon written request of at least three (3) members of the Committee.

(d) A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. The members of the Committee shall serve without compensation.

SECTION 4: Duties. The Committee shall:

(a) Visit the Thomas Cemetery on a regular basis to assess the condition and any
maintenance and/or upkeep needs of the cemetery.

(b)  Notify the City of maintenance and/or upkeep needs of the cemetery.

(c) Maintain the integrity of the historical significance of the cemetery.

(d)  Notify the North Little Rock History Commission of the acquisition or
development of any historical information or data developed from the Committee’s historical
research related to the cemetery for inclusion in the History Commission’s archives.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
\ - <5 ‘_/(ﬂ <
o oAt
Mayor Joe A. Smith LQ.? F—  Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
( o FILED /0.4%5 AM. P.M.
e, By (i ﬁi /47’7/*'4 /-if‘no; LeldS

Amy Beckﬁh@@ﬁ/ld, City Attorney

DATE i/ L2

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF

2

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Ar]{ansas

RECEIVED BY Q/ homa <
{ i
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOW BID OF AND
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER
INTO A CONTRACT WITH SMITHWORTH, INC. D/B/A ON-
LINE CONSTRUCTION FOR THE COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROJECT, POE
STREET IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II - STREET AND
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, IN THE AMOUNT OF
$156,790.00; APPROPRIATING FUNDS; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock has advertised for bids for a
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project, Poe Street Improvements Phase
II - Street and Drainage Improvements Project; and

WHEREAS, the low bidder meeting bid requirements for the project was
Smithworth, Inc. d/b/a On-Line Construction with a bid for the project of $156,790.00
(see bid information attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, $128,074.86 of the contract amount will come from FY2016 and
FY2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program funds and $28,715.14
will come from Ward 2 Drainage & Other Improvement funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the low bid of Smithworth, Inc. d/b/a On-Line Construction
for Poe Street Improvements Phase II - Street and Drainage Improvements Project, in the
amount of $156,790.00, is hereby accepted.

SECTION 2: That the project cost of $156,790.00 is hereby appropriated as
follows: $128,074.86 from FY2016 and FY2017 Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Program funds and $28,715.14 from Ward 2 Drainage & Other Improvement
funds.

SECTION 3: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute all
documents necessary to effect the completion of the herein stated project, with all
contracts/agreements to be reviewed and approved by the City Attorney prior to
execution,

SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.
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PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSORS: ATTEST:

Council Member Linda Robinson%mj Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

M_CLLLRSCQ—/( W | 8] A
Council Member Maurice @ylor IQ@' | S

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Amy Beckm&@(ields, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF

FILED [0/Y5 am. PM.
By Ci 1 /—l#;_ Amé’— [eldS
DATE 7 9-4-1&

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY % 777;)’74 Q: '
\
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CERTIFIED BID TABULATION SHEET BID DATE: WED., AUSLIST 29, 2018 PAGE1/1
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK « COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POE STREET IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE [t LOW BIPDER:  ON-LINE CONSTRUCTION, {hiC,

2300 MOUNTAN VIEW CUTOFF, BENTON, AR 72015

OI.CZMHOZW_.E.MQOZLZP HARRIS CONSTRUCTION tiGMT. | REDSTONE CONST. GROUP GENE SUMMERS CONST. BURKHALYER TECHNOLOGIES TOWNSHIP BUILDERS, INC. ; CISNERDS FAMILY CONST.
ITEM {DESCRIFTION Ut Qry 1. “UNIT PRICE _ " AMOUNT. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT * UNITPRICE . AMOUNT . 324 - UNIT PRICE -~ _ - AMOUNT -~ Czqu.ﬂ UNIT PRICE m AMOUNT
NER e —— s | 100 m .H.....m...‘B.“._..B. m .w.m%%. S 800000 S 800000 .m...m”.u..q.mwb.o m 338 $ 2350000 |§ 2350000 .u....m.o.unm.ua 5 2000000(§ 17360005 17,3000 50 H.H.a,..n._a .m.. ...N.m.wugc
C- 2 |UNCLASSIFIED ExcavaTiON v | 240000 .xw.w_m.&.ﬁ._.o. s 1700 | 40,800.00 ..m__. s Hmm..o”n,n.._o.n. s $501§ 2280000 |§ - 550|5 .%m.n.oo.?. s 150015 3600000 m m% u .m.”r.N.S.S
CUNCRETE CURB ANE GUTTER LFj1350.00 3 .p.m...‘.m.na.no.. 3 wwis 27000005 ...._.M..w.m.ﬁ_.c.%. H 1767 |5 23354505 Eo mummmcs s a00s  s2a000 s umo__ - m.ﬁ&..g.
8" CLASS 7 BASE COURSE TON | 625.00 .U.....ﬁ..po.&..s.m 500|8 1sssonls’ 5&88 s aags |3 assazsis 2200 5 ”.Wb&ma s 360008 2250000 BEE
: . m 21 ASPHALT SURFACE COLRSE s | azs00f : s ﬁnﬁoac s 005 1701000 m : : mwmmna $ 1234|5500 m 1508600 | 5 18005 1701000 e ..p.q.ms..nu
m...“m, CONCRETE DRIVEWAY S| 8500 s s0oc|s 520000 )5 $ soaols  sazmagols mN%mﬁSoo $ so00|s 500005, u.m.mo..ao
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R-18- (PO,
RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ENDORSEMENT OF FIRST ORION CORP. TO PARTICIPATE
IN THE TAX BACK PROGRAM AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION
15-4-2706(D) OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE ACT OF
2003; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, in order to be considered for participation in the Tax Back Program,
the local government must endorse a business to participate in the Tax Back Program and
authorize the refund of local sales and use taxes as provided in the Consolidated Incentive
Act of 2003; and

WHEREAS, said endorsement must be made on a specific form available from
the Arkansas Department of Economic Development; and

WHEREAS, First Orion Corp., 520 Main Street, North Little Rock, AR 72114,
has sought to participate in the program and more specifically has requested benefits
accruing from the relocation and expansion of its corporate headquarters in the City of
North Little Rock; and

WHEREAS, First Orion Corp. has agreed to furnish the local government all
necessary information for compliance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That First Orion Corp. is hereby endorsed by the City Council of
North Little Rock, Arkansas for benefits from the sales and use tax refunds as provided
by Section 15-4-2706(d) of the Consolidated Incentive Act of 2003.

SECTION 2: That the Department of Finance and Administration is authorized
to refund local sales and use tax to First Orion Corp.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith
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SPONSOR: ATTEST:

ez e

Mayor Joe A. Smith sz -ﬂ’t‘/ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
¥ (')_-/\_)

Amy Beckmeh@@‘fds, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF

FILED J()!/%  aM. P.M.
By (114 Aﬂcf Ay L e le/s

DATE 4 "q /g

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY 7{4//%)//7/6? .

,_.——-/
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R-18- &%

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS OF
LIENS TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN THE CITY
OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS AS A RESULT OF GRASS
CUTTING EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT OF OTHER NUISANCES;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Section 8.3.1 of North Little Rock Municipal Code (NLRMC) Chapter 8
(Nuisance Abatement and Property Maintenance), requires all property owners and occupants
within the municipal boundaries of the City of North Little Rock (the City) to cut weeds, grass and
abate other nuisances and unsanitary conditions on their property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City has the authority to do
whatever is necessary to correct the unsightly and unsanitary conditions and to charge the costs
thereof to the owners of lots or properties who neglect or refuse to remove, abate or eliminate any
weed or grass conditions after having been given seven (7) days written notice to do so; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City of North Little Rock
has corrected conditions existing on certain lots or other real properties within the City of North
Little Rock and is entitled to compensation pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-904; and

WHEREAS, the City has demanded payment in the amount allowed by law from the
property owners where work was performed and notified said owners of the City’s intent to file a
lien against their properties; and

WHEREAS, said property owners have failed to make payment, no part of the debt has
been paid, and the City claims a lien on the herein referenced properties (listed on Exhibit A
attached hereto) pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901 and 14-54-903; and

WHEREAS, state law also provides for a lien against the subject properties, with the
amount of liens to be determined by the City Council at a hearing held after notice to the owner(s)
thereof by certified mail or publication (see Exhibit A attached hereto), with said amounts (plus a
ten percent collection penalty) to be thereafter certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector; and

WHEREAS, a hearing for the purpose of determining such liens has been set for 6:05 p.m.,
September 10, 2018, in order to allow for service of the attached notice of same upon the listed
property owners, by certified mail or publication as is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That after notice to property owners, a public hearing was held at 6:05 p.m.
on September 10, 2018, for the purpose of determining the amount of liens, if any, to be filed

1





against certain real properties as the result of grass cutting and abatement of other nuisances by
the City of North Little Rock.

SECTION 2: That after said public hearing, and upon the verification of the Director of
the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department, the amounts listed on Exhibit A is hereby
certified as an obligation that is owed to the City and proper to be filed with the Pulaski County
Treasurer and Assessor as a lien against the real properties associated therewith.

SECTION 3: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is hereby ordered to file liens as
provided in this resolution; except that, prior to submission, he will update the list to remove any
lien amounts that have been paid in full prior to forwarding the list to the County.

SECTION 4: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is authorized to execute and file
such documents as are necessary to release any liens that is paid in full.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR‘ ATTEST:
Mayor Joe A Smith fjﬂ\oﬁh:’ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
= =
Amy Beckm\anﬁiélds, City Attorney FILED [0 fb AM, = BM.
Fee 0 dS
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/ABF q 4
DATE : . , S/

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North LQe Rock, Arkansas

SJ@VV\)

RECEIVED BY

L/





LEGAL NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that lien amounts upon the following described lands will be considered by the North Little Rock City at their meeting
on_September 10th 2018 in the North Little Rock Council Chambers. The owner(s) has the right to contest the lien before the City Council at

PARCEL 23N0490003200
Betty Momphrey
2910 E 2nd St

LOT 6 BLOCK 4 John L Baldwin

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2720005900
Paul Eller
1310 W 10th St

LOT W1/2 lot 3 BLOCK 6 Vestals

ANMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2700012800
James and Doris Rose
1220 W 13th St

LOT 16 BLOCK 6 Baring Cross

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520014300
Ilvory William

1515 W 16th St.

LOT 9 BLOCK 13 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520016900
Williams Abren

1709 W 16th St.

LOT 10 BLOCK 15 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520017400
Pure Land LLC

1810 W Long 17th St
LOT 3 BLOCK 16 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0700001500
Jerrice D Stout

Ben St
LOT 1 BLOCK 3 Ratterees
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460038800
Charles Squall
901 N D St

LOT 12 BLOCK 19 Dixie Sub

AMOUNT $185

the public hearing.

PARCEL 23N0490003100
Mary Nutt

2914 E 2nd St

LOT 5 BLOCK 4 John L Baldwin
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2720003200
The One INC

1403 W 10th St

LOT 11 BLOCK 2 Vestals
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2700016300

Robert Watts

1320 W 13th St

LOT 15 BLOCK 8 Baring Cross W 62 5' OF LTS
15816 8

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520020800
Gregg T Greer

1620 W 16th St.

LOT 5 BLOCK 19 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2640017500

Ameriland USA LLC

2008 W 16th St.

LOT 10 BLOCK 41 Laskers 2nd AMENDED PLAT
WA45FTOFESOFTOF1011& 1241
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2460014900

Gustus Stephen

1401 W 18th St

LOT 12 BLOCK 13 Missouri Pacific
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N0380007700

Fred & Anita Newton

1208 W 49th St

LOT BLOCK PT SE SE SW BEG 654'N&452 5'W OF SE
COR $140'W52 5'N140'E52 5'AL S R/W LN W 49TH ST
15 2N 12W

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2550005200

Kwesi Jones

409 College Park Dr

LOT 13 BLOCK 5 College Park N1

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460038500
Griselda Buckner

907 N D St

LOT 9 BLOCK 19 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2720006000

Paul Eller

1308 W 10th St

LOT E1/2 lot 3 BLOCK 6 Vestals
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2710007600
Steve Price

1513 W 12th St

LOT 2 BLOCK 8 Vestal View
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520013100
Independence Assett LLC
1413 W 16th St.

LOT 10 BLOCK 12 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520020900
Keith & Debbie Waggoner
1624 W 16th St.

LOT 6 BLOCK 19 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2520005300
Timothy Smith

1801 W Long 17th St
LOT 12 BLOCK 5 Laskers
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2110005900

Cynthia Jones

118 E 22nd St

LOT 10 BLOCK 8 North Argenta

N ARGENTAM 1/30FLOTS 1011 & 128
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0670020000
Brittany N Taylor Larry Thomas
Moorehead

4821 Alpha St

LOT 525-526 BLOCK 0 Rich Acres Sub
Ao Tiiers

PARCEL 23N0460044600
MO-Zark Land Investors LLC
Abt 814 N D St

LOT 20 BLOCK 24 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460038400

Willean Norwood C/O Teretha Wright
Abt 909 N D St

LOT 8 BLOCK 19 Dixie Sub

AMOUNT $185





PARCEL 230460013300 PARCEL 33N2700010500 PARCEL 23N0460043500

Don Price DBA Price Realty McCray Properties LTD LLC Helen Robinson
1002 N D St 1326 Division St. 809 N E St
LOT 14 BLOCK 8 Dixie Sub LOT 21 BLOCK 5 Baring Cross LOT 8 BLOCK 24 Dixie Sub

AMOUNT 5185 AMOUNT $185 AMOUNT $185






PARCEL 23N0460042900
Nathaniel Williams Jr

821 NE St

LOT 2 BLOCK 24 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460015500

Ingersoll Financial No 41 Land Trust ¢/Q
Ingersoll Financial LLC

1006 N E St

LOT 16 BLOCK 9 Dixie Sub

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460011300
Michael Simpkins

Abt 1110 N E St

LOT 18 BLOCK 5 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460008500
Nathaniel Holmon

1104 N F St

LOT 15 BLOCK 4 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460029400
Carolyn Stoval

900 N G St

LOT 13 BLOCK 15 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460030000
Hayden Management Group
Abt 912 N G St

LOT 19 BLOCK 15 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEIL 23N0460053900
Jimmie R Barber

Abt 812 N H St

LOT 18 BLOCK 28 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460004000
James Sutton

Abt 1116 N H St

LOT 19 BLOCK 2 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460026100
Lydia / Isbell Alvertis

Abt 919 N | St

LOT 3 BLOCK 14 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0160007900
Wanda F Kloss

6505 Medford LN

LOT 2 BLOCK 4 Lansbrook
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460035700
Jerry Quattlebaum

915 N E St

LOT 5 BLOCK 18 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460016100
Arthur L Mayweather
1020 N E 5t

LOT 22 BLOCK 9 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460008400

Simuel Ramey C/0 Simuel Ramsey JR
Abt 1102 N F St

LOT 14 BLOCK 4 Dixie Sub

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460010000
Helen Ayers

Abt 1117 N F St

LOT 5 BLOCK 5 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460031700
Napoleon Gilliam

903 NG St

LOT 11 BLOCK 16 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460031000

Ray Vincent & Michael A Garrett
917 N G St

LOT 4 BLOCK 16 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460019100

Joyce Ann Johnson C/O Joyce Ann
Johnson/Aaron

Abt 1013 N H St

LOT 6 BLOCK 11 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460004200
Gay Sidney Jr

Abt 1120 N H §t

LOT 21 BLOCK 2 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460001800
Landra Harris

1006 N I St

LOT 22 BLOCK 1 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0660001600

Veterans Village of America INC
Park PI

LOT 14 BLOCK 0 Park Place

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460015300
David Brooks

1002 N E St

LOT 14 BLOCK 9 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT 5185

PARCEL 23N0460011000
Vincent Ray & Michae! A Garrett
1164 N E St

LOT 15 BLOCK 5 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460010600
Lois Hollis

Abt 1103 N F St

LOT 11 BLOCK 5 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT 5185

PARCEL 23N0460009900
Seckt M E LTD CO

Abt 1121 N F St

LOT 3 BLOCK 5 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT 5185

PARCEL 23N0460029900
Betty Jean Bruton

Abt 910 N G §t

LOT 18 BLOCK 15 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT 5185

PARCEL 23N0460051000
Garcia Investments LLC
801N HSt

LOT 12 BLOCK 27 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0466005300
£thel Sullivan

Abt 1107 N H St

LOT 9 BLOCK 3 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0610029900

Deverho 3 LLC

4904 Haywood 5t

LOT 0 BLOCK 86 John Atkins Schoo! Sub
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 23N0460002900
Carlos A Neal

1111 NSt

LOT 8 BLOCK 2 Dixie Sub
AMOUNT 5185

PARCEL 23N0670013100
Berthena Nunn

425 Parksdale St

LOT 169 BLOCK O Rich Acres Sub
AMOUNT $185






PARCEL 33N2530005800
Timothy Smith
1700 Parker St
LOT 6 BLOCK 7 Maloney
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N1510001500
CrOmis Corporation
4624 Schaer St

LOT 1 BLOCK 2 Holeads
AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N2640015600

Juanita & Bobbie Jenkins
Phyilis St

LOT 4 BLOCK 40 Laskers 2nd

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 34N0050002100
Sonta Arteaga & Arncldo Diaz
1320 E Washington Ave

LOT 5 BLOCK 5

AMOUNT $185

PARCEL 33N3180032200

Don Price

114 S Redwood St

LOTE1/2 Lot 4 & 5E 1/2 N1/2 Lot 5 BLOCK 45
Choctaw

AMOUNT 5185

PARCEL 33N3180027000

1 & Investments Properties LLC
2300 E Washington Ave

LOT 12 BLOCK 40 Choctaw
AMOUNT $185






